
STATE OF ILLINOIS 
 

ILLINOIS COMMERCE COMMISSION 
 
 
Illinois Commerce Commission   : 
  On Its Own Motion    : 

-vs-     : 
The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company : 10-0716 
       : 
Citation for alleged violations federal rules  : 
incorporated by the Illinois Commerce  : 
Commission regarding testing   : 
 
 

ORDER 
 
By the Commission: 
 
I. PRODCEDURAL HISTORY 
 

On December 15, 2010, the Commission issued an Order initiating this 
proceeding and naming The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company (“Peoples Gas”) as 
respondent.  The purpose of the proceeding is to determine whether Peoples Gas has 
failed to comply with two federal rules, which the Commission has adopted by 
reference, and, if so, whether the Commission should impose civil penalties.  The Order 
made a Commission Staff report, dated November 10, 2010, part of the record. 

Pursuant to due notice, hearings were held before a duly authorized 
Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) of the Commission at its offices in Chicago, Illinois on 
January 13, April 7, and July 13, 2011.  Only Peoples Gas and Staff entered 
appearances and participated in this proceeding.  No other party requested intervention 
or entered an appearance.   
 Peoples Gas filed a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment concerning alleged 
violation of 49 C.F.R. § 192.515(a).  Staff filed a Response on February 24, 2011, and 
Peoples Gas filed a Reply to Staff’s Response on March 7, 2011.  In a written Ruling on 
March 17, 2011, the ALJ denied the Motion, but stated that the ruling does not suggest 
or conclude “that any provision of Part 192, including subsection 192.515(a), has been 
contravened by [Peoples Gas].” 
 Pursuant to a schedule set by the ALJ, Peoples Gas filed testimony in response 
to the Staff report on May 12, 2011.  Staff filed direct testimony on June 16, 2011.  On 
July 7, 2011, Peoples Gas filed correspondence stating that it would not file testimony 
responding to the Staff’s direct testimony.   
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Staff and Peoples Gas resolved this matter prior to an evidentiary hearing and, 
therefore, none of the filed testimony was offered for the record or admitted into 
evidence.  In September 2011, Peoples Gas and Staff entered into a Stipulation 
resolving the contested issues between them.  In light of this complete settlement of the 
issues, no briefs were filed and no proposed order needed to be served on the parties.  

The record was marked “Heard and Taken” on September 28, 2011.   
 

II. SUBJECT OF THE CITATION 
 

On March 10, 2010, a Peoples Gas crew was pressure testing a main that it had 
taken out of service to uprate from low to medium pressure.  During the pressure test, a 
pipe failure occurred and two Peoples Gas employees were injured, one fatally.   

 
The federal rules cited by the Commission for alleged violation are codified at 49 

C.F.R. §§192.13(c) and 192.515(a) and adopted by the Commission in 83 Ill. Admin. 
Code Part 590.  The Staff Report states that Peoples Gas did not block and brace an 
end cap prior to the pressure test.  Staff alleged that not blocking and bracing in this 
circumstance constituted a single violation of each cited rule.  If the Commission were to 
determine that a violation occurred, it could assess a civil penalty up to $100,000 per 
violation.  Peoples Gas denied Staff’s allegations. 
 Section 192.13(c) states that “[e]ach operator shall maintain, modify as 
appropriate, and follow the plans, procedures, and programs that it is required to 
establish under this part.”   Section 192.515(a) states: 
 

In conducting tests under this subpart, each operator shall 
insure that every reasonable precaution is taken to protect 
its employees and the general public during the testing.  
Whenever the hoop stress of the segment of the pipeline 
being tested will exceed 50 percent of SMYS, the operator 
shall take all practicable steps to keep persons not working 
on the testing operation outside of the testing area until the 
pressure is reduced to or below the proposed maximum 
allowable operating pressure. 

 
III. STIPULATION 
 On September 21, 2011, Peoples Gas filed the Stipulation, signed by Peoples 
Gas and the Staff.  The Stipulation is intended to resolve all issues in this proceeding 
without further litigation.  The Stipulation provides that, if the Commission does not 
approve it, the litigation of this proceeding would resume and the parties would be free 
to take positions inconsistent with the Stipulation’s terms.  The Stipulation provides for 
the following: 

a) Peoples Gas shall pay a civil penalty of $200,000; 
b) Peoples Gas shall revise certain main work orders that 

address blocking and bracing requirements, with the 
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intention of consolidating several orders into a single 
order and clarifying the requirements for blocking and 
bracing; 

c) Peoples Gas shall provide the revised main work order to 
the Commission Staff’s Pipeline Safety Program 
Manager and Office of General Counsel for review1

d) Peoples Gas shall implement the revised main work 
order as soon as practicable, conduct appropriate 
training of field personnel as part of the implementation, 
and monitor compliance with the revised order, 
particularly in the early stages of implementation.  
Peoples Gas shall advise the Commission Staff’s 
Pipeline Safety Program Manager when implementation 
occurs; 

; 

e) Peoples Gas shall include the revised main work order 
as part of its annual training and training for new crew 
leaders.   

The Stipulation further provides that it shall not be construed as an 
acknowledgement or admission of wrongdoing or liability by Peoples Gas. 

 
IV. COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
 
 The Stipulation includes specific steps that Peoples Gas will take to address the 
clarity of its work orders covering its blocking and bracing procedures which were at 
issue in this proceeding.  These steps include review by the Staff and training 
commitments associated with the revised main work order.  In addition, Peoples Gas 
will pay a civil penalty of $200,000.  The Commission concludes that the Stipulation, 
which includes constructive measures for enhanced safety and payment of the 
maximum penalty authorized by our rules, represents a reasonable resolution of the 
issues raised by the initiating Order in this proceeding.  Accordingly, we approve the 
Stipulation. 
 
V. FINDINGS AND ORDERING PARAGRAPHS 

The Commission, having considered the record herein, is of the opinion and finds 
that: 

1) The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company (“Peoples Gas”) is an Illinois 
corporation engaged in the distribution of natural gas to the public in the 
State of Illinois and, as such, is a public utility within the meaning of the 
Public Utilities Act; 

                                            
1  Peoples Gas provided the revised order on August 8, 2011. Staff reviewed the revised order and 
recommended additional changes which were provided to Peoples Gas on August 17, 2011.  Peoples 
Gas incorporated those changes and provided a second revised order which was reviewed and approved 
by Staff. 



10-0716 

4 
 

2) the Commission has jurisdiction over Peoples Gas and of the subject 
matter of this proceeding; 

3) the Commission Staff and Peoples Gas entered into a Stipulation 
specifying steps Peoples Gas would take to revise existing orders and 
provide appropriate training concerning the revised orders that were at 
issue in this proceeding;  

4) the Stipulation requires Peoples Gas to pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
$200,000; and 

5) the Stipulation should be incorporated into this Order, approved by the 
Commission and implemented as set forth above. 

 IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Illinois Commerce Commission that the 
Stipulation between Peoples Gas and Commission Staff, which is hereby incorporated 
into this Order, is approved and shall be fully implemented as set forth above.  
 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any motions, objections, or petitions in this 
proceeding that have not been specifically ruled on should be disposed of in a manner 
consistent with the findings and conclusions herein. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that subject to the provisions of Section 10-113 of 
the Act and 83 Ill. Adm. Code 200.880, this Order is final; it is not subject to the 
Administrative Review Law. 
 
 By order of the Commission this 22nd day of November, 2011. 
 
 
 
       (SIGNED) DOUGLAS P. SCOTT 
 
 
         CHAIRMAN 
 


